
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

January 25, 2016 
5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Lt. Kevin York, Vestavia Hills Police Department  
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Certificates of Commendation 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Financial Reports – George Sawaya, Deputy City Treasurer 
9. Approval of Minutes –  December 21, 2015  (Work Session) and January 11, 2016 

(Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

10. Resolution Number 4784 - A Resolution Authorizing Application To ADECA For A 
Land And Water Conservation Fund Grant To Construct A Park At Patchwork Farms  
(Public Hearing) 

New Business  

11. Resolution Number 4785 – A Resolution Accepting  A Bid For The Purchase Of Police 
Department Scopes 

12. Resolution Number 4786 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Chipotle 
Mexican Grill Of Colorado, LLC D/B/A Chipotle Mexican Grill; Matthew Steven Ells 
And Montgomery Moran, Executives   (Public Hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 4787 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For SFM, LLC 
d/b/a Sprouts Farmers Market 483; Brandon Frederick Lombardi, Amin 
Noormohammed Meredia and James Leroy Nielson, Executives  (Public Hearing) 

14. Resolution Number 4788 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Circle K 
Stores, Inc., d/b/a Circle K Store 2723802; Darrell J. Davis, Brian John Bednarz and 
Randy Cremo Horne, Executives   (Public Hearing) 

 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

15. Ordinance Number 2629 – An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance Number 2627 And 
Amending Chapter 8 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Republished 2015 
Entitled “Licenses And Business Regulations To Add An Article To Establish A NAICS 
Code, Operating Standards And Definitions For A Transportation Network Company Or 
TNC Operating Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To Provide For 
Penalties For Violation Thereof 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

16. Resolution Number 4789 – A Resolution Adopting The 2014 Jefferson County Multi-
Hazard Mitigation Plan  (Public Hearing)  

17. Ordinance Number 2628 – An Ordinance Granting Conditional Use Approval For The 
Intended Purpose Of Allowing Subleasing Of A Single Family Residence To Three (3) 
Unrelated Individuals Until May 2016   (Public Hearing) 

18. Citizens Comments  
19. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 21, 2015 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a work session on this date at 4:00 PM 
following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the work 
session to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

George Pierce 
      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 

Rebecca Leavings City Clerk 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
 
 Mr. Downes gave an update on several Public Works projects including the 
proposed Public Works facility; the purchase/sale agreement with Freddy’s on the old 
facility property etc.  He also updated the Council on the tag renewal efforts.  There’s a 
new fully functioning office in Hoover and the City needs to determine if online renewals 
will be something the City should pursue. 
 
 Discussion ensued about the MAXX services within the City and feedback was 
given with recommendation by the City Manager to keep the expenses around the 
budgeted amount of $71,000, add $7,000 for capital and wait for Mountain Brook to 
make a decision on additional routes. 
 
 There being no further business, work session adjourned at 6:25 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
 January 11, 2016 

Page 1 
 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JANUARY 11, 2016 
 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director/Treasurer 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 
 Invocation was given by Mindy Bodenhamer, Library in the Forest Foundation, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Luke Walker, Boy Scout, Troop 4.   
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 
• Mr. Ammons welcomed Tommy Dazzio and Anne Smythe of the Vestavia Hills 

Park and Recreation Board. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating January 12, 2016, as “Law 
Enforcement Appreciation Day.”  Mr. Downes read the proclamation aloud and indicated 
that he has worked with many police departments and Vestavia Hills has one of the best.  



City Council Minutes 
 January 11, 2016 

Page 2 
 

The Mayor and City Council presented the Proclamation to the Dan Rary, Police Chief, 
Lt Kevin York and Jason Hardin of the Vestavia Hills Police Department. 
 
 Chief Rary gave an update on recent police activity on Shades Crest Road. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes stated that the City will be closed Monday, January 18, 2016 in 
honor of Martin Luther King, Jr Day. 

 
 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Ammons reported that they had a meeting with RSA discussing future 
pensions which might give cities more options to help in recruiting, etc. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of December 28, 2015 (Regular Meeting) were presented for 
approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of December 28, 2015 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Henley and 
second by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4783 
 
Resolution Number 4783 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Fund 

$599,000 For SHAC, Phase II, In Coordination With The Vestavia 
Hills Park And Recreation Foundation  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4783 was by Mr. Ammons.  

Second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that the plan has been put together, cost estimates are close 
to $1.7 million and the request is for the City to fund $599,000.  The budget reflects an 
initial $100,000 for this project and this request would add the remaining $499,000. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 January 11, 2016 

Page 3 
 

 Tommy Dazzio, Vestavia Hills Park Board, explained the plans and designs and 
the reasons for the expansion of the park. 
 
 Discussion ensued with the timeline of the project, in-kind donations that need to 
be managed within the bid process, etc.  Mr. Downes explained. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the safety of the equipment that was originally designed to 
be installed on the property.  Mr. Downes stated that safety is paramount. 
 
 Lucy Beavers, Compound Playgrounds, explained the safety aspects of the 
equipment designed to be within this expansion of SHAC.  She described the layers of 
rope that prevents a child from slipping more than a couple of feet at any time.   
 
 Mr. Sharp asked about the progress on the tunnel. Mr. Downes explained that is 
an ALDOT project and they hope to have the bid complete soon. 
 
 Mr. Henley pointed out that this will come from capital improvement funds. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked if this is a budgeted item.  The Mayor 
stated that $100,000 of this was budgeted and the remainder will come from Capital 
Projects. 
 
There being no one else to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
January 25, 2016 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2625 - An Ordinance Declaring Certain Real Property As 
Surplus And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Purchase 
And Sale Agreement For Said Property  (Public Hearing, postponed to January 
25, 2016) 

• Resolution Number 4784 - A Resolution Authorizing Application To ADECA 
For A Land And Water Conservation Fund Grant To Construct A Park At 
Patchwork Farms  (Public Hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
 January 11, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked about calling the Police Department 
when someone knocks in the middle of the night.  Chief Rary indicated that would be 
what a resident should do if someone knocks at the door during the middle of the night.  
Had the resident opened the door the other morning, the result could have been very bad.  
Those residents did the correct thing and the perpetrators were captured. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Ammons and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 5:30 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4784 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4784 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION  TO ADECA FOR A 
LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND GRANT TO CONSTRUCT 
A PARK AT PATCHWORK FARMS 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills owns property intended for recreational use at 

Patchwork Farms and proposes to have constructed recreational resources at Patchwork Nature 

Park for the health and wellbeing of the general public; and 

 WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affiars (ADECA) 

administers the Land and Water Conservation (LWCF) Program of the National Park Service, 

which provides assistance to communities for development of recreational assets for parks with 

Section 6(f)(3) protection; and 

 WHEREAS, the estimated overall cost to construct Patchwork Nature Park is 

approximately $500,000, which may be performed in phases; and 

 WHEREAS, the construction of  trails with foot bridges has been included in the master 

plan for Patchwork Nature Park, with estimated cost of $340,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the construction of the proposed trails and bridges will provide for 

expanded recreational opportunities by making an additional 8.49 acres accessible to park users; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the required match percentage for the 2015 Funding Cycle LWCF grant is 

50/50 and the grant ceiling is $150,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best public interest to accept 

said grant and construct pursuant to the Patchwork Nature Park master plan. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Resolution Number 4784 
Page 2 

 
1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to make application to ADECA for LWCF 2015 

Funding Cycle assistance to construct trails at Patchwork Nature Park; and 

2. The City of Vestavia Hills will hold in reserve $190,000, which is the required match for 

LWCF assistance; and 

3. The City of Vestavia Hills understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all 

applicable Federal and State laws, rules, and regulations, including the LWCF Act 

Section 6(f)(3) protection of the park if it is developed with LWCF funding; and   

4. This Resolution Number 4784 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25 day of January, 2016.   

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor  
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca H. Leavings, 
City Clerk 



 
   Patchwork Farm Nature Park 
   Executive Summary 
 
 

 
 

The project is to construct a 8’ wide, 1850 lf linear diverse-use asphalt* connector trail including one foot bridge between Healthy 
Way and Old Looney Mill Road, along with a 8’ wide 1080 lf diverse-use gravel* trail with two foot bridges for crossing the creek 
that runs parallel to the trail.  Patchwork Nature Park is a greenspace buffer of 8.49 acres owned by the City of Vestavia Hills and 
located between Lifetime Fitness and the mixed use development of Vestavia Reserve in Patchwork Farms.  The property is also 
bounded by Cahaba River Road and Old Looney Mill Road (Jefferson County, AL).    
 
The proposed trail will connect with the Vestavia Hills sidewalks system, and it will be contiguous to existing fitness/recreational 
facilities and residential/mixed use area.  In addition to providing recreational opportunities, the low-impact construction park will 
serve to protect the riparian buffer around the stream.  Amenities are planned to be minimal, to include benches, garbage cans 
doggie waste stations, and a pavilion (in the future).  
 
*Width and construction of the trails to be determined through public involvement process. 
 

Item Cost  City City in-kind LWCF 
Trail, 1850 lf 8’ asphalt $59,500  . . $59,500 
Trail, 1080 lf 8’ gravel $21,500  . . $21,500 
Other amenities $5,000  . . $5,000 
Signage (2, one per entrance) $1,000  . . $1,000 
Bridges (3@$20K each) $60,000  . . $60,000 
Landscaping  $60,000  $60,000 . 
Drainage $30,000  $30,000 . 
Site grading $40,000  $40,000 . 
Clearing, grubbing, privet 
eradication $35,000

 $35,000 . 
Erosion control $18,000  $15,000 $3,000 
Crosswalk(s) $5,000  $5,000 . 
Project (grant) management and 
engineering oversight $5,000

 . $5,000 . 

PROJECT TOTAL $340,000  $185,000 $5,000 $150,000 
  Cash Outlay City I/K LWCF  

§ 

Exhbit - Resolution No. 4784



PA
TCH

W
O

RK
 N

A
TU

RE
 PA

RK
, 

PRE
LIM

IN
A

RY
 CO

ST E
STIM

A
TE

 
E

stim
ate 1

N
IM

R
O

D
 LO

N
G

 AN
D

 ASSO
C

IATES
05/28/151

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TIO
N

Q
U

A
N

TITY
U

N
IT M

E
A

S
U

R
E

U
N

IT C
O

S
T

G
ravel Trail

A
sphalt Trail

A
dd A

lternates
O

ption A
O

ption B

O
ption A

, 8' w
d. G

ravel Trail 
3,050

LF
$20.00

$61,000.00
O

ption B
, 8' w

d. A
sphalt Trail

3,050
LF

$32.00
$97,600.00

E
rosion C

ontrol
1

Lum
p sum

$18,000.00
$18,000.00

$18,000.00
C

learing, G
rubbing, P

rivet E
radication

1
Lum

p sum
$35,000.00

$35,000.00
$35,000.00

S
ite G

rading
1

Lum
p sum

$40,000.00
$40,000.00

$40,000.00
D

rainage
1

Lum
p sum

$30,000.00
$30,000.00

$30,000.00
Tim

ber Footbridges  
3

E
A

$20,000.00
$60,000.00

$60,000.00
Landscaping 

1
Lum

p sum
$60,000.00

$60,000.00
$60,000.00

B
enches

3
E

A
$1,500.00

$4,500.00
$4,500.00

A
lternate - P

refabricated Footbridges ($10,000 prem
ium

)
3

Lum
p sum

$10,000.00
$30,000.00

A
lternate - P

icnic P
avilion 

1
E

A
$65,000.00

$65,000.00
A

lternate -C
onc. Trail to Lifetim

e (elim
inates bridge-net zero)

1
E

A
$0.00

$0.00
A

lternate - Lighting
1

Lum
p sum

$80,000.00
$80,000.00

TO
TA

L
$308,500.00

345,100.00
$  

175,000.00
$     

Exhbit - Resolution No. 4784



Resolution Number 4784 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4784 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION  TO ADECA FOR A 
LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND GRANT TO CONSTRUCT 
A PARK AT PATCHWORK FARMS 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills owns property intended for recreational use at 

Patchwork Farms and proposes to have constructed recreational resources at Patchwork Nature 

Park for the health and wellbeing of the general public; and 

 WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affiars (ADECA) 

administers the Land and Water Conservation (LWCF) Program of the National Park Service, 

which provides assistance to communities for development of recreational assets for parks with 

Section 6(f)(3) protection; and 

 WHEREAS, the estimated overall cost to construct Patchwork Nature Park is 

approximately $500,000, which may be performed in phases; and 

 WHEREAS, the construction of  trails with foot bridges has been included in the master 

plan for Patchwork Nature Park, with estimated cost of $340,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the construction of the proposed trails and bridges will provide for 

expanded recreational opportunities by making an additional 8.49 acres accessible to park users; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the required match percentage for the 2015 Funding Cycle LWCF grant is 

50/50 and the grant ceiling is $150,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best public interest to accept 

said grant and construct pursuant to the Patchwork Nature Park master plan. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Resolution Number 4784 
Page 2 

 
1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to make application to ADECA for LWCF 2015 

Funding Cycle assistance to construct trails at Patchwork Nature Park; and 

2. The City of Vestavia Hills will hold in reserve $190,000, which is the required match for 

LWCF assistance; and 

3. The City of Vestavia Hills understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all 

applicable Federal and State laws, rules, and regulations, including the LWCF Act 

Section 6(f)(3) protection of the park if it is developed with LWCF funding; and   

4. This Resolution Number 4784 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25 day of January, 2016.   

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor  
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca H. Leavings, 
City Clerk 



 
   Patchwork Farm Nature Park 
   Executive Summary 
 
 

 
 

The project is to construct a 8’ wide, 1850 lf linear diverse-use asphalt* connector trail including one foot bridge between Healthy 
Way and Old Looney Mill Road, along with a 8’ wide 1080 lf diverse-use gravel* trail with two foot bridges for crossing the creek 
that runs parallel to the trail.  Patchwork Nature Park is a greenspace buffer of 8.49 acres owned by the City of Vestavia Hills and 
located between Lifetime Fitness and the mixed use development of Vestavia Reserve in Patchwork Farms.  The property is also 
bounded by Cahaba River Road and Old Looney Mill Road (Jefferson County, AL).    
 
The proposed trail will connect with the Vestavia Hills sidewalks system, and it will be contiguous to existing fitness/recreational 
facilities and residential/mixed use area.  In addition to providing recreational opportunities, the low-impact construction park will 
serve to protect the riparian buffer around the stream.  Amenities are planned to be minimal, to include benches, garbage cans 
doggie waste stations, and a pavilion (in the future).  
 
*Width and construction of the trails to be determined through public involvement process. 
 

Item Cost  City City in-kind LWCF 
Trail, 1850 lf 8’ asphalt $59,500  . . $59,500 
Trail, 1080 lf 8’ gravel $21,500  . . $21,500 
Other amenities $5,000  . . $5,000 
Signage (2, one per entrance) $1,000  . . $1,000 
Bridges (3@$20K each) $60,000  . . $60,000 
Landscaping  $60,000  $60,000 . 
Drainage $30,000  $30,000 . 
Site grading $40,000  $40,000 . 
Clearing, grubbing, privet 
eradication $35,000

 $35,000 . 
Erosion control $18,000  $15,000 $3,000 
Crosswalk(s) $5,000  $5,000 . 
Project (grant) management and 
engineering oversight $5,000

 . $5,000 . 

PROJECT TOTAL $340,000  $185,000 $5,000 $150,000 
  Cash Outlay City I/K LWCF  

§ 

Exhbit - Resolution No. 4784



PA
TCH

W
O

RK
 N

A
TU

RE
 PA

RK
, 

PRE
LIM

IN
A

RY
 CO

ST E
STIM

A
TE

 
E

stim
ate 1

N
IM

R
O

D
 LO

N
G

 AN
D

 ASSO
C

IATES
05/28/151

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TIO
N

Q
U

A
N

TITY
U

N
IT M

E
A

S
U

R
E

U
N

IT C
O

S
T

G
ravel Trail

A
sphalt Trail

A
dd A

lternates
O

ption A
O

ption B

O
ption A

, 8' w
d. G

ravel Trail 
3,050

LF
$20.00

$61,000.00
O

ption B
, 8' w

d. A
sphalt Trail

3,050
LF

$32.00
$97,600.00

E
rosion C

ontrol
1

Lum
p sum

$18,000.00
$18,000.00

$18,000.00
C

learing, G
rubbing, P

rivet E
radication

1
Lum

p sum
$35,000.00

$35,000.00
$35,000.00

S
ite G

rading
1

Lum
p sum

$40,000.00
$40,000.00

$40,000.00
D

rainage
1

Lum
p sum

$30,000.00
$30,000.00

$30,000.00
Tim

ber Footbridges  
3

E
A

$20,000.00
$60,000.00

$60,000.00
Landscaping 

1
Lum

p sum
$60,000.00

$60,000.00
$60,000.00

B
enches

3
E

A
$1,500.00

$4,500.00
$4,500.00

A
lternate - P

refabricated Footbridges ($10,000 prem
ium

)
3

Lum
p sum

$10,000.00
$30,000.00

A
lternate - P

icnic P
avilion 

1
E

A
$65,000.00

$65,000.00
A

lternate -C
onc. Trail to Lifetim

e (elim
inates bridge-net zero)

1
E

A
$0.00

$0.00
A

lternate - Lighting
1

Lum
p sum

$80,000.00
$80,000.00

TO
TA

L
$308,500.00

345,100.00
$  

175,000.00
$     

Exhbit - Resolution No. 4784



Resolution Number 4785 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4785 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR SCOPES FOR THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 14, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read 

aloud bids submitted for scopes for the Vestavia Hills Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Chief has reviewed the bids, detailed them in an Interoffice 

Memorandum dated January 14, 2016 and recommended acceptance of the bid submitted by 

Gulf States Distributors; a copy of said Interoffice Memorandum is marked as Exhibit A attached 

to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4785 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the Fire Chief and accept said bid as detailed above. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Gulf States Distributor as detailed in attached Exhibit A and 

recommended by the Police Chief, is hereby accepted; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver any and all 

documents necessary to secure said agreement and/or for said purchase; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4785 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT    
 
 
To: Jeff Downes    MEMO 
  
From: Chief Rary 
 
Date:  14 Jan 16 
 
CC:  Becky Leavings 
 
Re: Optic Bid Opening 
 
 
 
We opened the bids for optics for our Police Carbines on 14 January 2016 at 1030 hours.  This is 
a Budget 2016 item.  Present from the City was Becky Leavings of the City Clerk’s Office, Lt 
Kevin York and Chief Rary from the Police Department.  These three were the only people 
present.  Only one bid was received.  
 
Vendor       Total Bid   
Gulf States Distributors     $19,950.00 
 
I would recommend the City award the bid to Gulf States Distributors.   
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4785



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4786 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR CHIPOLTE MEXICAN GRILL OF 
COLORADO, LLC D/B/A CHIPOLTE MEXICAN 
GRILL; MATTHEW STEVEN ELLS AND 
MONTGOMERY MORAN, EXECUTIVES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Chipolte Mexican Grill of Colorado, LLC d/b/a Chipolte Mexican 

Grill, located at 1031 Montgomery Highway, Suite 111, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the 

on-premise sale of 020-Restaurant Retail Liquor; Matthew Steven Ells and Montgomery 

Moran, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4786



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4786



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4786



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4786



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4786



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4787 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR SFM, LLC D/B/A SPROUTS FARMERS 
MARKET 483; BRANDON FREDERICK 
LOMBARDI, AMIN NOORMOHAMMED MEREDIA 
AND JAMES LEROY NIELSON, EXECUTIVES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for SFM, LLC d/b/a Sprouts Farmers Market 483, located at 1031 

Montgomery Highway, Suite 101, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 050 - Retail 

Beer (Off-Premises Only) and 070 - Retail Table Wine (Off-Premises Only); Brandon 

Frederick Lombardi, Amin Noormohammed Meredia and James Leroy Nielson, 

executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4787



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4787



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4787



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4787



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4787



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4788 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR CIRCLE K STORES, INC., D/B/A CIRCLE K 
STORE 223802; DARRELL J. DAVIS, BRIAN JOHN 
BEDNARZ AND RANDY CREMO HORNE, 
EXECUTIVES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Circle K Stores, Inc., d/b/a Circle K Store 2723802, located at 

3935 Crosshaven Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 050 - Retail Beer (Off-

Premises Only) and 070 - Retail Table Wine (Off-Premises Only); Darrell J. Davis, Brian 

John Bednarz and Randy Cremo Horne, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk
 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4788



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4788



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4788



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4788



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4788



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 1 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER_2629 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2627 AND 
AMENDING CHAPTER 8 OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED “LICENSES AND 
BUSINESS REGULATIONS” TO ADD AN ARTICLE TO ESTABLISH A 
NAICS CODE, OPERATING STANDARDS AND DEFINITIONS FOR A 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR TNC OPERATING 
WITHIN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AND TO 
PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF 

 
THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2629 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 25th day of January, 2016. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, on April 28, 2014, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2498 to adopt a Code of Ordinances for the City of 

Vestavia Hills as republished in 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 8 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinance, republished 2014, 

(“City Code”) entitled “Licenses and Business Regulations” sets forth the requirements for 

operation of commercial businesses within the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and 

determined that there is a strong demand in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for more 

transportation options.  Competition in the marketplace benefits riders, drivers and cities; and 

WHEREAS, not only do consumers have more choice and greater access to a safe and 

reliable ride at their fingertips, drivers have additional economic opportunities and a way to 

make money on a flexible schedule; and 

WHEREAS, allowing transportation network companies (TNCs) to operate in the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in a safe and convenient manner will best serve the citizens of the 

City; and 

 WHEREAS, on December 28, 2015, the Mayor and City Council adopted Ordinance 

Number 2627 that established standards for the operation of a Transportation Network 

Company (TNC), intended to promote the public health, safety and welfare by amending 

Chapter 8 to establish standards and a definition for the operation of a Transportation Network 

Company (TNC); and 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 2 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council now feel it is in the best public interest to 

repeal Ordinance Number 2627 and to adopt and approve Ordinance Number 2629 in its 

entirety, as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that Ordinance Number 2627 is repealed and 

that Chapter 8 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinance, republished 2014, (“City Code”) 

entitled “Licenses and Business Regulations” be amended as follows: 

SECTION ONE.  Sec 8-17. Of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances, Republished 

2015, Entitled “Definition Of Terms” Shall Be Amended To Add The Following 

Definitions: 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR TNC:  Transportation network company or TNC 

shall mean an entity licensed pursuant to Section Three-A of this Ordinance that uses a digital 

network or software application service to connect passengers to transportation network 

company services provided by transportation network company drivers.  The vehicles used to 

provide transportation network company services are not motor carriers, express companies, 

utilities, common carriers, contract carriers, transportation companies, limousine services, 

taxicabs or vehicles for hire pursuant to Chapter 37 of the Code of Alabama, 1975, for purposes 

of this Ordinance. 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY (TNC) DRIVER:  Transportation network company 

(TNC) driver shall mean an individual who operates a motor vehicle that is: 

  (1) Owned, leased or otherwise authorized for use by the individual; 

  (2) Not classified as a taxicab or vehicle-for-hire; 

  (3) Used to provide transportation network company services; 

  (4) Inspected and insured as required by Sections Eight and Nine of this 

Ordinance; and 

  (5) Capable of carrying passengers at the same time within the 

manufacturers specified seating capacity of said vehicle.  Note:  It shall be unlawful for any to 

transport in a TNC vehicle any number of persons in excess of the manufacturer’s prescribed 

seating capacity of such vehicle. 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY (TNC) SERVICES:  Transportation network company 

(TNC) services shall mean transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 

passenger and prearranged with a TNC driver through the use of a TNC digital network or 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 3 

 
software application.  TNC services shall begin when a TNC driver accepts a request for 

transportation received through the TNC’s digital network or software application service, 

continue while the TNC driver transports the passenger in the TNC driver’s vehicle, and end 

when the passenger exits the TNC driver’s vehicle.  TNC service is not taxicab or vehicles for 

hire for purposes of this Ordinance. 

SECTION TWO:  PURPOSES; AUTHORIZATION:  Transportation network 

services provide an alternate form of transportation for residents and visitors to the City.  The 

purpose of this Ordinance is to authorize the use of the City’s rights-of-way by transportation 

network company drivers in a manner that is safe, convenient and serves the public welfare. 

SECTION THREE:  TNC LICENSE REQUIRED:   

A. A person shall not operate a TNC in the City without first having obtained a 

business license from the City; however, a person operating a TNC in the City as of the 

effective date of this Ordinance may continue to operate for a period of thirty (30) days 

following the effective date of this Ordinance so as to permit the person or entity to obtain a 

license from the City pursuant to this section.  Said license shall be assigned the NAICS code 

485315 – Transportation Network Company. 

B. The submitted license application shall include a description of an identification 

card that identifies the vehicle displaying it as a vehicle providing services on behalf of the 

licensed  TNC. 

C. Each applicant for a license  to operate a TNC shall comply with the 

requirements of this Ordinance and pay an annual fee of Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars 

($500.00) due January 1st and last payable without penalty January 31st of each year pursuant to 

Chapter 8 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances, republished 2014, as amended. 

D. A TNC license is a privilege and not a right.  A TNC shall be subject to 

suspension or revocation of its license for failing to comply with the requirements of this 

Ordinance. 

SECTION FOUR:  AGENT:  The TNC must, at all times it operates in the municipal 

limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, provide the City with current contact 

information, including an agent to accept service of process in the state.   

SECTION FIVE:  FARE CHARGED FOR SERVICES:  A TNC may charge a fare 

for the services provided to customers; provided that, if a fare is charged, the TNC shall 

disclose to customers the fare calculation method on its website or within the software 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 4 

 
application service.  The TNC shall provide customers with the applicable rates being charged 

and provide customers the option to receive an estimated fare before the customer decides to 

accept the services offered. 

SECTION SIX:  IDENTIFICATION OF TNC VEHICLES AND DRIVERS:   

A. The TNC’s software application or website shall provide the potential customer 

a picture of the TNC driver, and the license plate number of the motor vehicle utilized for 

providing the TNC service before the customer enters the TNC driver’s vehicle.  Customers 

will not be charged for a TNC service if the identification required herein is not available 

before the customer enters the TNC vehicle. 

B. At all times that a TNC driver is in his or her vehicle and either logged into the 

TNC service or providing TNC services, the vehicle he or she is driving shall prominently 

display the TNC identification card described in the TNC license application. 

SECTION SEVEN:  RECEIPT:  Within a reasonable period of time following the 

completion of the trip, a TNC shall transmit a receipt to the passenger that lists: 

A. The origin and destination of the trip; 

B. The total time and distance of the trip; and 

C. An itemization of the total fare paid, if any. 

SECTION EIGHT: TNC DRIVER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:   

A. The following automobile liability insurance requirements shall apply to any 

TNC driver providing TNC services within the city limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama with the following minimum personal injury and property damage liability insurance: 

  (1) General liability insurance—Public liability coverage with each of the 

following limits: 

   (a) Bodily injury liability: 

    (i) One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) each person; and 

    (ii) One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) each occurrence; 

and 

   (b) Property damage liability—One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 

each occurrence; or 

   (c) In lieu of subparts (1)(a) and (b) hereinabove, bodily injury and 

property damage combined with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence. 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 5 

 
  (2) Comprehensive automobile liability insurance including owned, non-

owned, and hired vehicles with each of the following limits: 

   (a) Bodily injury liability: 

    (i) Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) each 

person; and 

    (ii) Five Hundred Thousand Dollar ($500,000.00) each 

occurrence; and 

   (b) Property damage liability One Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($100,000.00) each occurrence; or 

   (c) In lieu of subparts (2)(a) and (b) hereinabove, bodily injury and 

property damage combined with limits of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) per 

occurrence. 

B. No license required by this Ordinance shall be granted to any person to operate 

any TNC or TNC vehicle upon the streets or elsewhere in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

until such person shall have first filed with the City Revenue Department a certificate of the 

insurance requirements stated in subpart A hereinabove issued to such person by a public 

liability insurance company authorized to do business in the state. 

C. The insurance coverage required by this section shall at all times be maintained 

for the full amount.  The certificate of each policy or policies of insurance required by this 

section to be filed with the City Revenue Department shall contain a clause obligating the 

company issuing the same to give not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice to the City 

Revenue Department before cancellation thereof.  Notice of cancellation shall not relieve the 

company issuing such policy or policies of liability insurance for any injury or claim arising 

before the cancellation becomes effective.  The cancellation of any such policy shall have the 

effect of suspending the license of such person to operate vehicles for TNC purposes covered 

thereby until a new policy or policies complying with the provisions of this section is filed with 

the City Revenue Department. 

D. Every insurance policy required hereunder shall contain a provision for 

continuing liability thereunder to the full amount thereof, notwithstanding any recovery 

thereon, that the liability of the insurer shall not be affected by the insolvency or the bankruptcy 

of the insured, and that until the policy is cancelled, the insurance company will not be relieved 

from the liability on account of nonpayment of premium, or any act or omission by the named 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 6 

 
insured.  Such policy of insurance shall further provide for the payment of any and all 

judgments, up to the limits of such policy, recovered against any person other than the owner, 

his agent or employee of any such business, who may operate the same with the consent or 

acquiescence of the owner. 

E. TNC drivers shall carry proof of the insured required under subsection C at all 

times that the TNC driver is in his or her vehicle and either logged into the TNC service or 

providing TNC services.  If the insurance is maintained by the TNC such proof of insurance 

shall, at a minimum, identify the TNC’s insurance company, policy number, effective dates of 

the policy, and instructions for filing a claim.  Proof of insurance may be displayed 

electronically through the TNC’s digital platform in accordance with Title 32-7A-6, Code of 

Alabama, 1975. 

SECTION NINE:  VEHICLE INSPECTION:  The vehicle used by a TNC driver to 

provide TNC services shall be kept in good mechanical and clean condition. 

SECTION TEN:  TNC DRIVER REQUIREMENTS:   

A. Prior to permitting an individual to act as a TNC driver on its digital platform, 

the TNC shall: 

  (1) Require the individual to submit an application to the TNC, which 

includes information regarding his or her address, age, driver license, driving history, motor 

vehicle registration, automobile liability insurance, and other information required by the TNC.  

NOTE: If the TNC, as a general practice, obtains a driver history on applicants, the requirement 

for submittal of a driver history is null and void; 

  (2) Conduct, or have a third party conduct, a local and national criminal 

background check for each applicant that shall include: 

   (a) Multi-state/multi-jurisdiction criminal records locator or other 

similar commercial nationwide database with validation (primary source search); and 

   (b) National Sex Offender Registry database; and 

   (c) Social Security Number Verification and address trace; and 

B. The TNC shall not permit an individual to act as a TNC driver on its digital 

platform who: 

  (1) Has had more than three (3) moving violations in the prior three-year 

period, or one (1) major violation in the prior three-year period (including, but not limited to, 

attempting to evade the police, reckless driving, or driving on a suspended or revoked license); 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 7 

 
  (2) Has been convicted, within the last seven (7) years, of driving under the 

influence of drugs or alcohol, fraud, sexual offenses, use of a motor vehicle to commit a felony, 

a crime involving property damage, and/or theft, acts of violence, or acts of terror; 

  (3) Is a match in the National Sex Offender Registry; 

  (4) Does not possess a valid driver’s license; 

  (5) Does not possess proof of registration for the motor vehicle(s) used to 

provide TNC services; 

  (6) Does not possess proof of automobile liability insurance for the motor 

vehicle(s) used to provide TNC services; or 

  (7) Is not at least nineteen (19) years of age. 

SECTION ELEVEN:  NO STREET HAILS:  A TNC driver shall exclusively accept 

rides booked through a TNC’s digital network or software application service and shall not 

solicit or accept street hails.   

SECTION TWELVE:  NO DISCRIMINATION; ACCESSIBILITY:   

A. The TNC shall adopt a policy of non-discrimination on the basis of destination, 

race, color, national origin, religious belief or affiliation, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation 

with respect to passengers and potential passengers and notify TNC drivers of such policy. 

B. TNC drivers shall comply with all applicable laws regarding nondiscrimination 

against passengers or potential passengers on the basis of destination, race, color, national 

origin, religious belief or affiliation, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation. 

C. TNC drivers shall comply with all applicable laws relating to accommodation of 

service animals. 

D. A TNC shall not impose additional charges for providing services to persons 

with physical disabilities because of those disabilities. 

E. A TNC shall provide passengers an opportunity to indicate whether they require 

a wheelchair-accessible vehicle.  If a TNC cannot arrange a wheelchair accessible TNC service 

it shall provide information on its website or software application regarding alternate providers 

of wheelchair-accessible service, if available. 

 

SECTION THIRTEEN:  RECORDS:  A TNC shall maintain: 

A. Individual trip records for at least two (2) years from the date each trip was 

provided; 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 8 

 
B. TNC driver records at least until the two-year anniversary of the date on which a 

TNC driver’s activation on the TNC digital network has ended; and 

C. When requested, and no more frequently than on an annual basis, the City shall 

have the right to visually inspect a sample of five (5) TNC drivers’ documents.  The sample 

shall be selected at a meeting in a mutually agreed upon locale in the City of Vestavia Hills.  At 

this locale, the TNC shall display an electronic list of unique identification numbers assigned to 

the individuals who, within the preceding month, completed at least one trip originating in the 

City of Vestavia Hills.  The City shall then select up to five (5) driver identification numbers 

and request visual inspection of records held by the TNC for those five (5) TNC drivers for 

purposes of verifying that the TNC and its TNC drivers are in compliance.  The inspection shall 

take place at a mutually agreed location within the City.  At this local, the TNC shall furnish to 

the City records for each of the TNC driver associated with the driver identification numbers so 

identified, including driver’s license, the vehicle registration and proof that the TNC conducted, 

or had a third party conduct, the criminal background check and driving records check on such 

TNC driver as required by Section 10.  The City does not assume any responsibility for the 

operations of the TNC, its drivers or any actions or omissions arising in connection with its 

activities, which, at all times, shall remain the responsibility of the TNC. 

SECTION FOURTEEN:  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES:  It shall be unlawful to 

violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.  Any person, firm or corporation 

violating any of the said terms and provisions of this Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be 

punished in accordance with Title 11-45-9, Code of Alabama, 1975, for a misdemeanor 

violation for each such offense.  Each day any violation of this Ordinance shall continue shall 

constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION FIFTEEN:  SEVERABILITY:  If any part, section or subdivision of this 

Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be 

construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full 

force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

SECTION SIXTEEN: ARTICLE AND SECTION HEADINGS:  The article and 

section headings and captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not 

be considered a part hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

SECTION SEVENTEEN:  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance Number 2629 shall 

become effective following publishing/posting as required by Alabama law. 



Ordinance No. 2629 
Page 9 

 
ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Mayor 
ATTESTED BY 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 

I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance duly and legally 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 25th day of January, 
2016 while in regular session, and the same appears of record in the minute book of said date of 
said City. 
 
 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____ day of January, 2016. 
 
            
      _______________________________________ 
       Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4789 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2014 JEFFERSON COUNTY MULTI-
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills City Council recognizes the threat that natural 

hazards pose to people and property within the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama has participated in the development of 

a multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan, hereby known as the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-

Hazard Mitigation Plan in accordance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000; and 

 WHEREAS, the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies 

mitigation goals and actions to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and property in the 

City of Vestavia Hills from impacts of future hazards and disasters; and 

 WHEREAS, adoption by the City of Vestavia Hills demonstrates our commitment to 

hazard mitigation and to achieving the goals outlined in the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard 

Mitigation Plan. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan is adopted by the City of 

Vestavia, Alabama; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4789 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VOLENS ET POTENS 

 

 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 
TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
DATE:  January 14, 2016 
 
RE:  Recommendation for City Council resolution adopting the 2014 Jefferson County  
  Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
Attached is a copy of the completed 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, including 
the City of Vestavia Hills’ mitigation actions and a letter from the Jefferson County Emergency 
Management requesting that the City Council adopt the plan. 
 
I recommend that the Vestavia Hills City Council adopt the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard 
Mitigation Plan, including the City of Vestavia Hills’ mitigation actions, as presented. 

Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 1



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 2



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 3



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 4



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 5



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 6



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 7



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 8



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 9



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 10



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 11



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 12



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 13



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 14



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 15



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 16



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 17



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 18



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 19



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 20



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 21



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 22



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 23



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 24



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 25



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 26



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 27



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 28



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 29



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 30



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 31



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 32



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 33



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 34



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 35



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 36



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 37



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 38



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 39



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 40



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 41



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 42



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 43



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 44



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 45



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 46



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 47



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 48



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 49



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 50



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 51



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 52



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 53



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 54



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 55



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 56



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 57



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 58



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 59



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 60



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 61



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 62



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 63



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 64



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 65



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 66



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 67



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 68



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 69



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 70



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 71



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 72



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 73



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 74



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 75



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 76



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 77



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 78



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 79



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 80



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 81



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 82



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 83



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 84



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 85



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 86



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 87



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 88



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 89



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 90



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 91



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 92



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 93



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 94



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 95



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 96



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 97



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 98



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 99



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 100



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 101



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 102



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 103



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 104



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 105



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 106



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 107



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 108



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 109



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 110



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 111



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 112



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 113



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 114



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 115



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 116



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 117



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 118



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 119



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 120



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 121



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 122



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 123



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 124



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 125



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 126



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 127



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 128



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 129



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 130



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 131



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 132



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 133



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 134



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 135



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 136



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 137



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 138



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 139



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 140



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 141



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 142



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 143



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 144



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 145



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 146



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 147



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 148



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 149



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 150



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 151



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 152



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 153



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 154



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 155



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 156



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 157



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 158



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 159



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 160



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 161



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 162



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 163



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 164



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 165



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 166



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 167



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 168



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 169



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 170



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 171



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 172



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 173



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 174



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 175



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 176



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 177



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 178



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 179



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 180



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 181



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 182



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 183



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 184



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 185



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 186



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 187



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 188



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 189



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 190



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 191



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 192



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 193



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 194



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 195



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 196



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 197



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 198



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 199



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 200



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 201



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 202



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 203



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 204



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 205



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 206



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 207



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 208



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 209



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 210



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 211



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 212



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 213



Ordinance Number 2628 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2628 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR THE INTENDED PURPOSE OF ALLOWING 
SUBLEASING OF A SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE TO 3 
UNRELATED INDIVIDUALS UNTIL MAY 2016 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible 

by right in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015, Albert Elmore IV submitted an application for 

conditional use approval to allow him to sublease his residence located at 1708 Carovel 

Circle to three (3) unrelated individuals until May 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 1708 Carovel Circle, Lot 3, Block 1, Ridge 

Park Addition to Vestavia Hills is presently zoned Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density 

residential district); and 

 WHEREAS, Table 5 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within an R-2 classification as single-family residential; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission at its regular 

meeting of November 12, 2015 voted to deny recommendation for approval of the 

request as presented, with certain stipulations as detailed below: 

1. That said Conditional Use will expire on May 31, 2016; and 

2. No more than four (4) people may reside in the home during the duration of 

the Conditional Use Approval; and 

3. Vehicles will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in the driveway, garage, 

or right-of-way immediately in front of said residence in a manner so as not to 

interfere with adjacent properties; and 

4. Premises must be mowed and maintained at all times. 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated October 9, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2628. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2628 
Page 2 

 
A. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Alberto Elmore, IV, for the 

subleasing of his home located at 1708 Carovel Circle, Lot 3, Block 1, Ridge Park 

Addition to Vestavia Hills with the following conditions: 

1. That said Conditional Use will expire on May 31, 2016; and 

2. No more than four (4) people may reside in the home during the duration of 

the Conditional Use Approval; and 

3. Vehicles will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in the driveway, garage, 

or right-of-way immediately in front of said residence in a manner so as not to 

interfere with adjacent properties; and 

4. Premises shall be mowed and maintained at all times. 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2628 
Page 3 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2628 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 8th day of February, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-1115-67 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for Multi-Family Use  

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1708 Carovel Cir. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Albert Elmore IV 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant/owner is a student at Samford University 

who purchased the lot on Carovel Cir., adjacent to Columbiana Rd. Currently there 
are multiple unrelated males living in the house. The City became aware of this 
situation through various code and noise complaints received by the City. A zoning 
violation letter was issued at the end of August and is attached. The applicant has 
acknowledged these issues and has agreed to take corrective actions to remedy. The 
applicant has agreed to let the conditional use expire at the end of the school year in 
May.  
 
The property is zoned R-2. R-2 zoning limits uses to single family dwellings. The 
definition of a single family dwelling includes the language: A building designed for 
or occupied exclusively by one family… 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request can be considered 

consistent with the plan because the house will still remain residential in appearance. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission add the 
following conditions: 

A. The Conditional Use will expire on May 31, 2016; 
B. No more than four (4) people may be living in the house; 
C. Cars will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in the driveway or 

garage; 
D. Yard must be mowed and maintained 



 2 

 
2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
Approval for Multi-Family Use Located At 1708 Carovel Cir. with the following conditions: 

1. The conditional use will expire on May 31, 2016; 
2. No more than four (4) people may be living in the 

house; 
3. Cars will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in 

the driveway or garage; and 
4. Yard must be mowed and maintained. 

Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Goodwin – no   Mr. Burrell – no   
Mr. Gilchrist – no   Mr. Sharp – no          
Mr. Wolfe – no   Mr. Visintainer – no   
Mr. Brooks – no    Mr. Larson – no     
Motion failed. 

 



P&Z Application 

Page 4 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:  

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the 
Municipal Center. 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working  days prior to the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

II. 	APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property) 

NAME: 	PAe)(1.- E6,6-re- 

ADDRESS: 	-30 8  6 r avcA (;va,le.  
Xl4  

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 

PHONE NUMBER: Home 440(4 1S S.-  &CO t 	Office 	  

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT: 	  



(olelic  
Representing Agent (if any)/date Owner Signature/Date 

/con-
tiotari: P lic 

. My aom sion expires  
— day g , 20)%  

P&Z Application 

Page 5 

III. ACTION REQUESTED 

Request that the above described property be approved conditional use approval pursuant 
to Section 	 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

Current Zoning of Property: Fcm4ky  

 

 

Requested Conditional use For the intended purpose of: 	04141:0 9,A  

voomtwak) Aroaqk tiovi 201(1. 5ce. ccormatAL leAcr 
(Example: From "VH R-1 "to "VH 0-1'" for office building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request** 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 	(address, legal, etc.) 

't y,c)14. 	pettit  11.00c. 

Property size: 

 

feet X 	 feet. Acres: .3 

     

INFORMATION 	ATTACHED: 

Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

Application fees submitted. 

VI. 	I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

V. 

Givezns ir my hand and seal 
thisc 	day o 	)C—'7 	, 20/1-->  . 

........... 



Residents Vestavia and others, whom it may concern, 

The reason for my letter is two fold: one, I want to issue a formal apology to 
the residents of Carovel Circle and two, I want to declare my intentions for my 
residence at 1708 Carovel Circle. 

At the beginning of December 2014, I purchased the house after it had been 
vacant and neglected for many months. The yard was in shambles and the exterior 
of the house had been shown no noticeable attention for a considerable amount of 
time. The week after I bought the house I began to slowly remedy the out of control 
shrubs and vines growing up the house. By February, I had the house looking much 
better then when I first acquired it. However, this summer I was out of state on a 
two month long missions trip with Campus Outreach, a college Ministry at Samford 
University. It is during that time that the temporary occupants that were living in 
the house neglected basic landscaping needs and the grass grew to unacceptable 
heights. I have since then bought a mower and cut the grass regularly about once 
every two weeks. 

It is for the summer months that I want to apologize to the residents of 
Carovel Circle. I should have checked in with the occupants to assure they were 
cutting the grass and not just assuming they were taking care of it. This will not be a 
problem going forward. 

I also want to declare my intentions for the house going forward. I am 
planning on living there through the month of May of 2016 when I will graduate 
college. I am applying for conditional use for the three other guys living with me 
who will also graduate in May. At that time, I am going to start a 45-60 day 
remodeling phase. I am going to paint the exterior as well as remodel the interior, 
budgeting for a full-scale remodel equal to about half the value of the house. During 
that time, I will also do landscaping to the front and back yard. In July I hope to sell 
the house and put this saga behind me. 

I am asking conditional use until May from the residents of Carovel Circle and 
the court. I want to be as agreeable as possible so please let me know what I can do 
to continue being a better neighbor. 

Sincerely, 

Albert Elmore IV 



City of Vestavia Hills 
Office of the City Clerk 
Planning & Zoning 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills Alabama 35216 
(205) 978-0131 

P1115-67//29-36-3-1-5 
1708 Carovel Circle 
Conditional Use to allow Multi-
Family Use 
Albert Elmore, IV 	R2 

August 31, 2015 

Albert Elmore, IV 
1708 Carovel Circle 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

RE: 	Complaint Number: 201500112 	 Sent Via USPS Certified Return Receipt 
PID #: 29-36-3-001-005.000 	 #7015 1730 0000 9287 5533 
Zoned: 	Vestavia Hills R-2 (single family residential) 

Property Location: 	1708 Carovel Circle; Lot 3, Block 1, Ridge Park Addition to Vestavia Hills (MB 
6o MP 13); Vestavia Hills AL 35216 

Attention Property Owner: 

A complaint has been received that the following violation(s) exist on the above referenced property 
deeded to you and/or under your control through Warranty Deed as recorded in Book 201484, Page 6334, 
Jefferson County Alabama. 

Zoning — Violation of Zoning — Use of Single-family residence for multiple unrelated occupants; R-2  
Medium Density Residential District.  

To comply with the Zoning Ordinance and/or Subdivision Regulations, you must: 

Cease and desist all occupancy of home with the exception of a single-family or a single occupant with one 
(1) unrelated roommate. 

Contact our office for additional information at 205-978-0184. 

You have the right to appeal zoning violations to the Board of Zoning Adjustment/Planning and Zoning 
Commission for their consideration of the matter. 

You have fifteen (15) days from the date of this letter, or attempt by the United States Postal Service to deliver 
this letter, to take correction action. Failure to have the existing violations corrected or to allow future 
violations, may result in immediate criminal proceedings, which may include a warrant for your arrest or 
criminal summons. 

This is the only notice you will receive.  Please contact Zoning Enforcement at 205-978-0184 upon 
receipt of this notice to discuss this matter. 



/ HOMEWOOD 

onop • Woe. 3 
gateway 

• L' i f" ^, V°. 

11 • 

• 

HOOVER 

high 
density 

residential 

- Berry 
I Middle 

School 
WINOS • WW1  

sm•• • Awn* • am, 

highway 
commercial i i  

low and 
medium 
density 

residential' 

mixed office & 
neighborhood, 

retail 

Figure 20: Columbiana Road 
Land Use Analysis 

Neighborhood  •  prirrurily low  /  medium density onaletamily residential 
area with higher densities near village tenter(a) Other uses  may  Include 
beheads, places of worship. reacational areas, and open space. 

Village Center  •  Mead use centers with highest densities in core areas. 
Mix of use* should include retail and service busiroacks, professional Mien, 
high density residential areas. institutions, recr.tion areas, and  public spates. 

Commercial Core  -  primarily high densay, retail and wonrr business 
arras with professional offices and multifamily residentts on upper floon or 
on periphery Other uses  may unchain inseinanons and public space. 

Gateways and Nodes  •  Gateways are entryways Into the community or 
village enhanced with consistent ovule, lanthoming, and other elements 
Nodes an SW..  suds an  transit stops. where public spaces. swage. and other 
Public design elements should be considered. 

Professional Offices • primarily professional orb..., uses. Denim ,  should 
vary according to surroundings. Other toes may include ret a il and services 
(supporting offices and employees), places of worship, pubic spion• and open space. 

Recreation and Open Space -PINK and Mime seeseanws (aolinea and 
reamed natural  spaces.  Recreation facilities may be active. mune or combined. Open 
mac. are areas presencd in a natural kart and may include panne mcicational 

Trailhcads  -  Tradheads are public sues along a nail, where bike racks, searing, 
parking, and public amenities are provided for trail users_ 

■ Schools  .sdiod facilities admmorrared by the Vesravia Hills School System. 

n 

0 
rtes 	v • 

105 	 Vestavia Hills Comprehensive Plan 


	2016_1125CC_A
	2015_1221CC_M ws
	2016_0111CC_M
	Resolution 4784
	Resolution 4784
	Resolution 4785
	Resolution 4786
	Resolution 4787
	Resolution 4788
	Ordinance 2629
	Resolution 4789
	Ordinance 2628



